Information Transfer Policy

DOCUMENT CLASSIFICATION	Internal
VERISON	1.0
DATE	
DOCUMENT AUTHOR	Ayaz Sabir
DOCUMENT OWNER	

REVISION HISTORY

VERSION	DATE	REVISION AUTHOR	SUMMARY OF CHANGES

DISTRIBUTION LIST

NAME	SUMMARY OF CHANGE	

APPROVAL

NAME	POSITION	SIGN

Contents

1. Introduction	5
2. Purpose	5
3. Scope	6
4. Policy Statements	7
4.1 General Principles for Information Transfer	7
4.2 Electronic Information Transfer	8
4.3 Physical Media Transfer	9
4.4 Third-Party Information Transfer	9
5. Roles and Responsibilities	10
5.1 Senior Management	10
5.2 Chief Information Security Officer (CISO)	10
5.3 Information Security Team	11
5.4 IT Operations Team	11
5.5 Data Owners	11
5.6 Business Unit Managers	12
5.7 All Personnel	12
6. Information Classification and Handling	13
6.1 Information Classification	13
6.2 Handling Requirements	13
7. Transfer Methods and Controls	14
7.1 Email Communications	14
7.2 File Transfer Systems	14
7.3 Cloud-Based Transfers	15
7.4 API-Based Transfers	15
8. Physical Media Security	16
8.1 Media Preparation	16
8.2 Transportation Security	16
8.3 Media Disposal	17
9. Monitoring and Incident Response	17
9.1 Transfer Monitoring	17
9.2 Incident Detection	18
9.3 Incident Response	18
10. Compliance and Audit	19
10.1 Regulatory Compliance	19
10.2 Internal Auditing	19
10.3 Third-Party Assessments	20

11. Training and Awareness	20
11.1 Personnel Training	20
11.2 Competency Management	21
12. Definitions	21
13. References	23

1. Introduction

In today's interconnected business environment, organizations routinely transfer sensitive information across various channels, systems, and boundaries to support business operations, collaboration, and service delivery. Information transfer activities include electronic communications, file sharing, data exchanges with business partners, cloud service interactions, and physical media transportation. These transfers expose information to various security risks including unauthorized access, interception, modification, and loss during transit.

This Information Transfer Policy establishes the framework for securing all forms of information transfer within and outside the organization in accordance with ISO/IEC 27001:2022 requirements, The policy outlines the principles, requirements, and processes for ensuring that information maintains its confidentiality, integrity, and availability during transfer operations while supporting business objectives and regulatory compliance.

By implementing this policy, the organization demonstrates its commitment to protecting information assets during transfer activities and maintaining stakeholder trust in its ability to handle sensitive information securely. The policy establishes systematic approaches to information transfer security that address both current threats and emerging risks while enabling efficient and secure business operations.

2. Purpose

The primary purpose of this Information Transfer Policy is to establish comprehensive security controls and management processes for all information transfer activities. This policy aims to:

Protect Information in Transit: Ensure the confidentiality, integrity, and availability
of information during transfer across all communication channels, networks, and
media types.

- Prevent Unauthorized Access: Implement appropriate controls to prevent unauthorized parties from accessing, intercepting, or modifying information during transfer operations.
- **Ensure Secure Communication**: Establish secure communication channels and protocols for different types of information transfer based on sensitivity and risk levels.
- **Control Information Sharing**: Implement appropriate authorization and approval processes for information sharing with internal and external parties.
- Maintain Data Integrity: Ensure that information remains accurate and complete during transfer operations and that any unauthorized modifications are detected.
- **Support Regulatory Compliance**: Meet applicable legal, regulatory, and contractual requirements related to information protection, data privacy, and secure information handling.
- **Enable Business Operations**: Provide secure and efficient information transfer capabilities that support business processes, collaboration, and service delivery.
- **Facilitate Incident Response**: Establish monitoring and logging capabilities that support the detection, investigation, and response to information transfer security incidents.

3. Scope

This Information Transfer Policy applies to all information transfer activities involving organizational information, regardless of format, medium, or destination, including all organizational units, personnel, systems, and third parties involved in information transfer operations. The policy encompasses:

• **All Information Types**: Structured and unstructured data, documents, databases, applications, intellectual property, personal information, and any other information assets owned, processed, or managed by the organization.

- **All Transfer Methods**: Electronic transfers including email, file transfer protocols, web- based transfers, application programming interfaces (APIs), database synchronization, messaging systems, and cloud-based transfers.
- **All Physical Media**: Portable storage devices, optical media, magnetic tapes, printed documents, and any other physical media used for information transfer.
- **All Communication Channels**: Internal networks, internet connections, wireless communications, telephone systems, video conferencing, and any other communication methods used for information transfer.
- All Transfer Destinations: Internal transfers between organizational units, external transfers to business partners, customers, suppliers, regulatory bodies, and cloud service providers.
- **All Personnel**: Employees, contractors, consultants, temporary workers, and authorized third parties who initiate, facilitate, or receive information transfers.
- **Entire Transfer Lifecycle**: From initial transfer authorization and preparation through transmission, receipt, verification, and final disposition of transferred information.

This policy establishes minimum security requirements for information transfer activities. Specific detailed procedures and technical configurations will be documented separately and referenced herein.

4. Policy Statements

This section outlines the mandatory principles and practices for managing information transfer security, aligning with ISO/IEC 27001:2022 requirements. These statements provide clear management direction and support for all information transfer activities.

4.1 General Principles for Information Transfer

All information transfer activities must adhere to the following general principles to ensure

comprehensive protection and effective management:

- Risk-Based Protection: Information transfer security controls must be proportionate to the sensitivity and value of the information being transferred and the risks associated with the transfer method and destination.
- **Authorized Transfers Only**: All information transfers must be authorized by appropriate personnel based on business requirements, security policies, and regulatory obligations.
- Secure Channels: Information transfers must use secure communication channels and protocols appropriate to the sensitivity of the information and the risk environment.
- **End-to-End Security**: Security controls must protect information throughout the entire transfer process from source to destination, including intermediate processing and storage points.
- Verification and Validation: Information transfer integrity and successful completion must be verified through appropriate technical and procedural controls.
- Audit and Monitoring: Information transfer activities must be logged, monitored, and auditable to support security oversight and incident investigation.

4.2 Electronic Information Transfer

The organization shall implement comprehensive security controls for electronic information transfer:

- **Encryption Requirements**: Sensitive information transferred electronically shall be encrypted using approved encryption algorithms and key management practices appropriate to the information classification and risk level.
- **Secure Protocols**: Electronic transfers shall use secure communication protocols that provide authentication, integrity protection, and confidentiality appropriate to the information being transferred.

- Access Controls: Electronic transfer systems shall implement appropriate access controls, authentication mechanisms, and authorization processes to ensure only authorized parties can initiate or receive transfers.
- **Network Security**: Electronic transfers shall be protected by appropriate network security controls including firewalls, intrusion detection systems, and secure network architectures.
- **Transfer Verification**: Electronic transfers shall include mechanisms to verify successful transmission, data integrity, and recipient authentication where appropriate.

4.3 Physical Media Transfer

The organization shall establish security controls for information transfer using physical media:

- Media Protection: Physical media containing sensitive information shall be protected through appropriate encryption, access controls, and physical security measures during transfer.
- **Secure Transportation**: Physical media transfers shall use secure transportation methods appropriate to the sensitivity of the information and the risk environment.
- **Chain of Custody**: Physical media transfers shall maintain appropriate chain of custody documentation and procedures to ensure accountability and traceability.
- Media Sanitization: Physical media shall be properly sanitized or destroyed after transfer completion to prevent unauthorized recovery of information.
- **Inventory Management**: Physical media used for transfers shall be inventoried, tracked, and managed throughout the transfer lifecycle.

4.4 Third-Party Information Transfer

The organization shall implement specific controls for information transfers involving third

parties:

- Agreement Requirements: Information transfers to third parties shall be governed by appropriate agreements that specify security requirements, responsibilities, and obligations.
- **Due Diligence**: Third parties receiving organizational information shall be subject to appropriate security due diligence and assessment processes.
- **Transfer Authorization**: Third-party information transfer shall require explicit authorization based on business requirements and risk assessments.
- **Monitoring and Oversight**: Third-party information transfers shall be monitored and subject to appropriate oversight and compliance verification.
- **Incident Notification**: Third parties shall be required to notify the organization of any security incidents involving transferred information.

5. Roles and Responsibilities

5.1 Senior Management

Senior management is responsible for:

- Providing leadership and commitment to information transfer security
- Approving information transfer policies and major transfer agreements
- Allocating adequate resources for information transfer security activities
- Reviewing information transfer security performance and incident reports
- Ensuring integration of transfer security with business planning

5.2 Chief Information Security Officer (CISO)

The CISO is responsible for:

- Developing and maintaining information transfer security policies and procedures
- Overseeing information transfer security architecture and controls
- Coordinating information transfer security activities across the organization
- Monitoring information transfer security compliance and performance
- Reporting information transfer security status to senior management

5.3 Information Security Team

The information security team is responsible for:

- Implementing and maintaining information transfer security controls
- Conducting security assessments of transfer systems and processes
- Monitoring information transfer activities for security threats
- Responding to information transfer security incidents
- Providing guidance and support for secure transfer implementations

5.4 IT Operations Team

The IT operations team is responsible for:

- Operating and maintaining information transfer systems and infrastructure
- Implementing technical security controls for transfer systems
- Monitoring transfer system performance and availability
- Supporting information transfer security incident response
- Maintaining transfer system documentation and configurations

5.5 Data Owners

Data owners are responsible for:

- Classifying information and determining appropriate transfer security requirements
- Authorizing information transfers based on business requirements and security policies
- Ensuring compliance with regulatory and contractual obligations for information transfers
- Monitoring and reviewing information transfer activities within their domains
- Reporting information transfer security concerns and incidents

5.6 Business Unit Managers

Business unit managers are responsible for:

- Ensuring personnel understand information transfer security requirements
- Supporting information transfer security initiatives within their areas
- Identifying business requirements for information transfer capabilities
- Participating in information transfer risk assessments
- Reporting information transfer security issues and incidents

5.7 All Personnel

All personnel are responsible for:

- Following information transfer security policies and procedures
- Using approved methods and systems for information transfers
- Protecting transfer credentials and access mechanisms
- Reporting suspected information transfer security incidents
- Participating in information transfer security training programs

6. Information Classification and Handling

6.1 Information Classification

Information shall be classified to determine appropriate transfer security requirements:

- Classification Levels: Information shall be classified according to established organizational classification schemes that consider sensitivity, value, and regulatory requirements.
- Transfer Requirements: Each classification level shall have specific transfer security requirements including encryption, access controls, and approval processes.
- Marking and Labeling: Information shall be appropriately marked and labeled to indicate classification levels and transfer handling requirements.
- **Classification Review**: Information classification shall be reviewed regularly and updated as necessary to reflect changing business requirements and risk levels.
- **Declassification**: Information classification may be reduced or removed when appropriate, with corresponding adjustments to transfer security requirements.

6.2 Handling Requirements

Information handling during transfer shall follow established requirements:

- **Preparation**: Information shall be properly prepared for transfer including appropriate formatting, packaging, and security control application.
- **Transmission**: Information transmission shall follow approved procedures and use authorized systems and channels.
- **Receipt**: Information receipt shall be verified and acknowledged according to established procedures.
- **Processing**: Any intermediate processing during transfer shall maintain

appropriate security controls and audit trails.

• **Storage**: Temporary storage during transfer shall implement appropriate security controls and retention limitations.

7. Transfer Methods and Controls

7.1 Email Communications

Email-based information transfers shall implement appropriate security controls:

- **Encryption**: Sensitive information sent via email shall be encrypted using approved encryption methods and technologies.
- **Digital Signatures**: Email transfers of critical information shall use digital signatures to ensure authenticity and integrity.
- Access Controls: Email systems shall implement appropriate access controls and authentication mechanisms.
- **Content Filtering**: Email systems shall include content filtering and data loss prevention capabilities to prevent unauthorized information disclosure.
- **Retention Management**: Email transfers shall be subject to appropriate retention and disposal policies and procedures.

7.2 File Transfer Systems

Dedicated file transfer systems shall implement comprehensive security controls:

- **Secure Protocols**: File transfers shall use secure protocols such as SFTP, FTPS, or HTTPS that provide encryption and authentication.
- Access Management: File transfer systems shall implement role-based access controls and strong authentication mechanisms.
- **Transfer Monitoring**: File transfer activities shall be monitored and logged for security oversight and audit purposes.

- **Virus Scanning**: File transfers shall be subject to malware scanning and threat detection before and after transfer.
- **Transfer Verification**: File transfer integrity shall be verified using checksums, digital signatures, or other appropriate mechanisms.

7.3 Cloud-Based Transfers

Information transfers involving cloud services shall implement specific security controls:

- **Provider Assessment**: Cloud service providers shall be assessed for security capabilities and compliance with organizational requirements.
- **Data Encryption**: Information transferred to cloud services shall be encrypted both in transit and at rest using approved encryption methods.
- **Access Controls**: Cloud-based transfers shall implement appropriate access controls and identity management integration.
- **Data Location**: Cloud transfers shall consider data location requirements and restrictions based on regulatory and contractual obligations.
- **Service Agreements**: Cloud transfers shall be governed by appropriate service agreements that specify security requirements and responsibilities.

7.4 API-Based Transfers

Application programming interface (API) based transfers shall implement security controls:

- **Authentication**: API transfers shall use strong authentication mechanisms including API keys, tokens, or certificates.
- **Authorization**: API access shall be controlled through appropriate authorization mechanisms and scope limitations.
- **Encryption**: API communications shall be encrypted using secure protocols and current encryption standards.
- **Rate Limiting**: API transfers shall implement appropriate rate limiting and throttling to prevent abuse and denial of service.

 Monitoring: API transfer activities shall be monitored and logged for security and performance oversight.

8. Physical Media Security

8.1 Media Preparation

Physical media used for information transfer shall be properly prepared:

- Media Selection: Appropriate media types shall be selected based on information requirements, security needs, and transfer constraints.
- **Encryption**: Sensitive information on physical media shall be encrypted using approved encryption algorithms and key management practices.
- **Labeling**: Physical media shall be appropriately labeled with classification markings, handling instructions, and contact information.
- **Packaging**: Physical media shall be packaged appropriately to protect against physical damage, environmental hazards, and unauthorized access.
- **Documentation**: Physical media transfers shall be documented with appropriate transfer records and chain of custody information.

8.2 Transportation Security

Physical media transportation shall implement appropriate security measures:

- **Secure Carriers**: Physical media shall be transported using approved carriers with appropriate security capabilities and insurance coverage.
- **Tracking**: Physical media shipments shall be tracked throughout the transportation process with appropriate monitoring and notification.
- **Insurance**: Physical media transfers shall be covered by appropriate insurance to protect against loss or damage during transportation.
- **Emergency Procedures**: Emergency procedures shall be established for handling loss, stolen, or damaged media during transportation.

• **Delivery Verification**: Media delivery shall be verified and acknowledged by authorized recipients with appropriate documentation.

8.3 Media Disposal

Physical media shall be properly disposed of after transfer completion:

- **Data Sanitization**: Physical media shall be sanitized using approved methods to prevent unauthorized recovery of information.
- **Destruction**: Physical media containing highly sensitive information shall be physically destroyed using approved destruction methods.
- **Verification**: Media sanitization and destruction shall be verified and documented with appropriate certificates and records.
- **Environmental Compliance**: Media disposal shall comply with applicable environmental regulations and organizational sustainability policies.
- **Vendor Management**: Third-party media disposal services shall be properly vetted and managed with appropriate agreements and oversight.

9. Monitoring and Incident Response

9.1 Transfer Monitoring

Information transfer activities shall be comprehensively monitored:

- **Activity Logging**: All information transfer activities shall be logged in detail for security oversight and audit purposes.
- **Real-Time Monitoring**: Critical information transfers shall be monitored in real-time for security threats and performance issues.
- **Anomaly Detection**: Transfer monitoring systems shall detect and alert unusual or suspicious transfer activities.
- Performance Monitoring: Transfer system performance shall be monitored to

ensure availability and identify potential security issues.

• **Compliance Monitoring**: Transfer activities shall be monitored for compliance with security policies and regulatory requirements.

9.2 Incident Detection

Information transfer security incidents shall be detected through multiple mechanisms:

- **Automated Detection**: Automated monitoring systems shall detect and alert security events and policy violations.
- **User Reporting**: Personnel shall be trained to recognize and report potential transfer security incidents.
- **System Alerts**: Transfer systems shall generate appropriate alerts for security events and system anomalies.
- Audit Reviews: Regular audit reviews shall identify potential security incidents and compliance issues.
- **External Notifications**: External parties shall notify the organization of transfer-related security incidents.

9.3 Incident Response

Information transfer security incidents shall be responded to using established procedures:

- **Incident Classification**: Transfer incidents shall be classified based on severity, impact, and type to determine appropriate response procedures.
- **Incident Containment**: Transfer incidents shall be contained to prevent further damage or unauthorized access to information.
- **Incident Investigation**: Transfer incidents shall be investigated to determine root causes, impact, and appropriate remediation actions.
- **Recovery Procedures**: Information and systems shall be recovered following transfer incidents with appropriate verification and testing.

• **Lessons Learned**: Transfer incidents shall be analyzed for lessons learned and process improvements.

10. Compliance and Audit

10.1 Regulatory Compliance

Information transfer activities shall comply with applicable regulations:

- Data Protection Laws: Transfers shall comply with applicable data protection and privacy regulations including cross-border transfer restrictions.
- **Industry Standards**: Transfers shall meet applicable industry-specific regulations and standards for information protection.
- **Contractual Obligations**: Transfers shall comply with contractual obligations and service level agreements with customers and partners.
- **Export Controls**: International transfers shall comply with applicable export control regulations and restrictions.
- Record Keeping: Transfer activities shall maintain appropriate records to demonstrate regulatory compliance.

10.2 Internal Auditing

Information transfer security shall be regularly audited:

- Audit Planning: Transfer security audits shall be planned and conducted according to established audit procedures and schedules.
- **Control Testing**: Transfer security controls shall be tested for effectiveness and compliance with policies and procedures.
- Risk Assessment: Transfer security risks shall be assessed and evaluated as part of audit activities.
- Finding Management: Audit findings shall be tracked and remediated according to

established procedures and timelines.

• **Continuous Improvement**: Audit results shall be used to improve transfer security controls and processes.

10.3 Third-Party Assessments

Third-party transfer security assessments shall be conducted:

- **Independent Reviews**: Independent third-party reviews shall be conducted periodically to provide objective assessment of transfer security.
- **Certification Audits**: Transfer security shall be assessed as part of relevant certification audits and compliance reviews.
- Vendor Assessments: Third-party transfer service providers shall be assessed for security compliance and capability.
- **Penetration Testing**: Transfer systems shall be subject to penetration testing to identify vulnerabilities and weaknesses.
- **Compliance Verification**: Third-party assessments shall verify compliance with applicable regulations and standards.

11. Training and Awareness

11.1 Personnel Training

Information transfer security training shall be provided to relevant personnel:

- Role-Based Training: Training shall be tailored to specific roles and responsibilities related to information transfer.
- **Security Awareness**: General security awareness training shall include information transfer security topics relevant to all personnel.
- **Technical Training**: Technical personnel shall receive specialized training on transfer security technologies and procedures.

- **Incident Response Training**: Personnel involved in incident response shall receive training on transfer-related incident procedures.
- **Compliance Training**: Personnel shall receive training in regulatory and contractual requirements for information transfers.

11.2 Competency Management

Personnel with information transfer responsibilities shall meet established competency requirements:

- **Qualifications**: Personnel shall have appropriate education, training, and experience for their transfer security responsibilities.
- **Skills Assessment**: Personnel skills and competencies shall be regularly assessed and development needs identified.
- Professional Development: Opportunities for professional development shall be provided to enhance transfer security capabilities.
- **Certification Support**: Relevant professional certifications shall be encouraged and supported for personnel with transfer security roles.
- **Knowledge Management**: Knowledge transfer processes shall ensure continuity of transfer security expertise.

12. Definitions

- Application Programming Interface (API): A set of protocols and tools for building software applications that specifies how software components should interact.
- **Chain of Custody**: The chronological documentation or paper trail that records the sequence of custody, control, transfer, analysis, and disposition of materials.

- Data Loss Prevention (DLP): A strategy for making sure that end users do not send sensitive or critical information outside the corporate network.
- **Digital Signature**: A mathematical scheme for verifying the authenticity of digital messages or documents.
- **Encryption**: The process of converting information or data into a code to prevent unauthorized access.
- **File Transfer Protocol (FTP)**: A standard network protocol used for the transfer of computer files between a client and server.
- **Information Classification**: The process of organizing data by relevant categories so that it may be used and protected more efficiently.
- **Information Transfer**: The process of moving information from one location, system, or party to another through various communication channels or media.
- **Integrity**: The assurance that information has not been altered in an unauthorized manner and remains accurate and complete.
- **Man-in-the-Middle Attack**: A cyberattack where the attacker secretly relays and possibly alters communications between two parties.
- Physical Media: Tangible storage devices such as hard drives, USB drives, CDs,
 DVDs, and magnetic tapes used to store and transfer information.
- Secure File Transfer Protocol (SFTP): A network protocol that provides file access, file transfer, and file management over a secure data stream.

- Secure Sockets Layer/Transport Layer Security (SSL/TLS): Cryptographic protocols designed to provide communications security over a computer network.
- **Third Party**: An external organization or individual that provides services to or has a business relationship with the organization.
- **Transport Encryption**: Encryption that protects data while it is being transmitted from one location to another.
- **Two-Factor Authentication (2FA)**: A security process in which users provide two different authentication factors to verify themselves.
- **Virtual Private Network (VPN)**: A secure connection method that creates an encrypted tunnel over a public network.
- **Zero Trust**: A security model that requires strict identity verification for every person and device trying to access resources.

13. References

- Information Security Policy
- Data Classification Policy
- Access Control Policy
- Incident Response Policy
- Third-Party Risk Management Policy
- Business Continuity Policy